MINISTRY OF CULTURE AND STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS OF UKRAINE KHARKIV STATE ACADEMY OF CULTURE FACULTY OF CHOREOGRAPHIC ART

QUALIFICATION WORK

for obtaining master's degree in specialty 024 Choreography

on topic: <u>RETRANSLATION OF IMAGES OF WAR EXPRESSIVELY</u> <u>BY MEANS OF BALLROOM DANCE</u>

Structure of the qualification work:

- theoretic part of the art project
- art project choreographic composition

THE FLOWER OF THE WAR

performer: higher education applicant of the second (master's) level
of full-time department
CHENG SIYI
Qualification work supervisor:
Candidate of Philosophical Sciences, associate professor,
associate professor of the department of folk choreography,
Kharkiv state academy of culture,
BRAGINA TETIANA

Accepted for the defense: "'	· 2025	
Head of the department	<u>Ka</u>	rina OSTROVSKA
	(signature)	(clarification of signature)
Grade	///	
(according t	o the national scale, ECTS points	s)
	Kharkiv, 2025	

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION3

CHAPTER ONE Artistic and Historical Context
1.1. Historical Background Reflected in the Dance Drama 6
1.2. Influence of Chinese Cultural Elements
1.3 Comparison Between the Film and Dance Drama in Portraying War Themes15
CHAPTER TWO Choreography and Performance Analysis
2.1. Symbolic Use of Movement and Gestures
2.2. Integration of Traditional and Modern Dance Techniques
2.3 Emotional Impact Conveyed Through Performers' Expressions
CHAPTER THREE Technical and Aesthetic Elements
3.1 Role of Music and Sound in Enhancing the Drama
3.2 Costume Design and Its Symbolic Meaning
3.3 Stage Design and Lighting Effects in Creating Atmosphere
ART PROJECT
COMPOSITION PLAN
STAGE PLAN 4Ошибка! Закладка не определена.
CONCLUSION
DEEEDENCE 52

INTRODUCTION

Relevance of the Topic

The dance drama "The Flower of War" presents a fascinating blend of storytelling through dance, music, and performance, while addressing profound themes such as war, human sacrifice, and survival. By examining "The Flower of War", this thesis aims to provide a deeper understanding of how a traditional Chinese dance drama can incorporate historical and cultural elements into the narrative structure and performance. Additionally, the integration of Latin dance styles offers a unique perspective on how different dance techniques can be utilized to convey emotional depth and cultural significance in a dramatic context. The exploration of these elements will provide valuable insights into how dance can serve as both an artistic expression and a method of preserving and reflecting on historical events, particularly in relation to war and its impacts on both individuals and society.

Objective – To analyze "The Flower of War" dance drama from both an artistic and technical perspective. T

Tasks of the Thesis:

- -To analyze the historical background reflected in "The Flower of War" and how the narrative conveys the horrors and emotional struggles of war.
- -To explore the influence of Chinese cultural elements on the choreography and narrative of the dance drama.
- -To investigate the symbolic use of movement and gestures, and how they convey the emotional depth and themes of the work.
- -To assess the integration of traditional and modern dance techniques in the choreography and performance, with a focus on Latin dance forms.
- -To analyze the role of music, costume design, and stage elements in enhancing the overall emotional and aesthetic impact of the performance.
- -To provide a comparison between the dance drama and its film adaptation, with a focus on how war themes are conveyed through dance versus film techniques.
- **Object** –Is "The Flower of War", a dance drama that integrates historical narrative with artistic dance forms, particularly Latin dance, to portray the complex

themes of war and its human cost. This work is set against the backdrop of the Chinese historical context, and the thesis will focus on both its artistic and technical aspects, analyzing how dance communicates the emotional and cultural significance of war.

Subject – involves the exploration of dance as a medium for historical and cultural storytelling.

Research Methods

The research methods employed in this thesis will be both qualitative and analytical, combining theoretical analysis with practical observation. The following methods will be used:

-Textual Analysis: A detailed examination of the script and choreography of "The Flower of War", focusing on how the historical themes and emotional expressions are conveyed through dance and movement.

-Comparative Analysis: A comparison between the dance drama and the film adaptation of "The Flower of War" to identify the differences in how the themes of war, culture, and history are portrayed in both forms.

-Performance Analysis: Observation and analysis of live performances or video recordings of the dance drama, focusing on the symbolic use of movement, gestures, and the integration of traditional and modern dance techniques.

Practical Significance of the Research -This research holds practical significance in the fields of dance, theater, and cultural studies, particularly in the context of how dance can be used as a tool for historical reflection and emotional expression.

Structure of the Thesis

The thesis consists of an introduction, the theoretical section of the creative project, which includes two main chapters with corresponding sub-sections, the creative project of the choreographic composition The Flower of War, which includes the composition and staging plans, conclusions, and a list of references. The total length of the thesis is 54 pages, with the main text comprising 42 pages. The reference list contains 52 sources.

This format aligns with the structure of a thesis analyzing The Flower of War, providing a clear and detailed approach to the research methods, objectives, and practical applications.

CHAPTER ONE ARTISTIC AND HISTORICAL CONTEXT

1.1. Historical Background Reflected in the Dance Drama

Latin dance is divided into national standard Latin dance and Latin style dance (i.e. folk Latin dance).

International standard Latin dance also refers to sports dance, which is divided into five dances: Rumba, Cha Cha, Cowboy, Samba and Bullfight; the associations are divided into the World Dance Sports Federation (WDSF), the World International Standard Dance Federation (WDC), the China International Standard Dance Federation (CBDF), the China Sports Dance Federation (CDSF) and other associations[1].

National standard Latin dance is a sports competitive dance, with a strong explosive style and skills as its characteristics. There is a lot of room for competitive sports dance. It has become an official event in the Asian Games. Latin dance officially applied to enter the Olympic Games on November 12, 2014, and is currently in the approval stage. The highest annual Latin dance event WDSF will be held in different locations in member countries around the world. For all people in the world who are involved in international standard dance work, Blackpool in the UK can be said to be the top international standard dance event. WDC will hold the Blackpool Dance Festival in a fixed location in the UK, which is deeply loved by European people[2].

Latin style dance is a general term for folk dances that originated from Latin American culture and have been improved by modern dancers and spread all over the world. Popular dances in recent years include salsa, bachata, zucco, meringue, etc. Although Latin dance has national and world-class dance competitions, it is not a competitive dance[3-4].

The origin of Latin dance is quite complicated. Each of its dance types originated from different countries, with different backgrounds, histories and development processes. However, most of them originated from the Americas, and they are a fusion of three cultures. As early as the 16th century, European conquerors imported a large number of African blacks to the Americas in order to obtain

sufficient labor. By the 17th and 18th centuries, the cultures from these three continents had gradually merged on the Americas. Dance, as the main form of entertainment for the middle and lower classes, naturally fully reflects this cultural integration. Moreover, with the influx of European court dance elements, these folk dances have been further standardized, evolved and improved[5-6].

After World War II, Americans spread these dances around the world, especially in Europe. Subsequently, Europeans standardized and processed these folk dances, and finally included Latin dance in the world competition in 1960, and divided it into five types: rumba, samba, cha-cha, bullfight, and cowboy. There were also unified regulations for their dance steps, beats, and other aspects[7-8].

After the end of World War II, the British Dance Association once again put the collection, organization, and processing of ballroom dance (national standard dance) at the top of its work. Around 1950, the British Dance Association built a national standard dance text theory teaching standard for fast waltz, cha-cha, rumba, cowboy, samba, and bullfight on the basis of foxtrot, tango, slow waltz, and quickstep, bringing the number of national standard dance types to 10. Around 1955, the number of 10 national standard dances was established and has been used ever since. In addition, the above 10 kinds of national standard dances are divided into two types of dance systems: modern dance (waltz, tango, quickstep, foxtrot, Viennese waltz) and Latin dance (Rumba, Chacha, Jive, Samba, Paso Doble). Thus, a set of theories, two types of dance systems, and 10 types of dances are formed. [9] Cuba is the birthplace of Latin dance and Latin music. Initially, Latin music and dance were a way for people to celebrate victory or harvest, and later gradually developed into a way for young people to express their love for each other. In the process of its development, Latin dance was rejected because of its overly passionate movements, too straightforward expression of emotions, and no constraints. However, this did not affect the development of Latin dance. The irresistible charm eventually made Latin dance popular all over the world[10].

The dance drama The Flower of War offers a poignant and multifaceted portrayal of historical events, deeply rooted in the cultural and socio-political context

of the era it depicts. Drawing inspiration from the historical backdrop of war, nationalism, and cultural resilience, the performance delves into the complexities of human experience during times of conflict. This section will explore how the historical background is reflected in the dance drama, examining the themes, choreography, and symbolism used to bring the past to life, while also providing insights into the broader cultural and historical significance that informs the production.

At the heart of The Flower of War is the depiction of the Second Sino-Japanese War (1937-1945), a pivotal moment in Chinese history. The war not only shaped the political landscape of the nation but also had profound social and cultural repercussions that continue to resonate today. This conflict marked a period of immense suffering for the Chinese people, with widespread devastation, loss of life, and the destruction of cultural heritage. The dance drama is set against the backdrop of this turbulent era, using the events of the war as a focal point to explore themes of survival, patriotism, sacrifice, and resilience.

The choreography reflects the harsh realities of war through expressive movement, portraying both the emotional and physical toll that the war took on the people of China. Through the use of powerful, dynamic dance sequences, the performers embody the struggle of ordinary civilians, soldiers, and national heroes caught in the throes of a brutal war. The historical accuracy of the setting is underscored by the use of period-specific costumes, props, and scenery that transport the audience back to the 1930s, creating a visceral sense of time and place[11].

A central theme in The Flower of War is the spirit of resistance and the fierce nationalism that emerged during the Second Sino-Japanese War. The narrative of the dance drama revolves around the collective struggle of the Chinese people to defend their homeland against foreign invasion. Nationalism, in this context, is not only a political sentiment but also a cultural force that binds the characters together in their fight for survival and independence. The dance drama embodies this sense of unity through synchronized movements, group formations, and collective actions, highlighting the importance of solidarity in times of war.

In particular, the role of women in the resistance movement is emphasized. During the war, Chinese women played a significant role in supporting the war effort, whether by acting as nurses, factory workers, or even fighters. In the dance drama, female characters are portrayed as strong, determined, and capable of defying traditional gender roles[12]. Through their movements, the women in The Flower of War symbolize the resilience of the Chinese people as a whole, breaking free from the confines of patriarchal society to stand shoulder to shoulder with men in defense of their country.

The choreography in these scenes reflects the themes of resistance through aggressive, bold movements that contrast with the more lyrical, expressive sequences representing the fragility and vulnerability of the human spirit during war. The juxtaposition of these two styles of dance helps to emphasize the dual nature of the war experience: the external struggle against the enemy and the internal emotional and psychological battle for survival[13].

One of the most significant aspects of The Flower of War is its exploration of the impact of war on culture and national identity. The destruction of cultural landmarks, the loss of traditional art forms, and the trauma experienced by the population are central to the narrative. The dance drama uses these historical themes to comment on the ways in which cultural heritage is both preserved and eroded during times of conflict.

The symbolism in the choreography is crucial to conveying these themes. For instance, Latin dance movements are often juxtaposed with more modern, angular, or fragmented movements, reflecting the disintegration of societal norms and the loss of cultural cohesion during wartime. At the same time, there are moments of reclamation, where the dancers use traditional movements to symbolize the resilience of Chinese culture. These moments are often accompanied by the use of Chinese musical instruments, adding another layer of historical authenticity to the performance.

The historical narrative also emphasizes the role of art and culture as forms of resistance during the war. In the midst of violence and destruction, the preservation

and performance of traditional cultural practices, such as dance and music, served as a means of asserting national identity and resisting cultural imperialism. The Flower of War highlights this through its use of Latin dance forms, blending classical Chinese dance techniques with more contemporary choreographic styles to convey the evolving nature of Chinese cultural identity in the face of external threats.

In addition to the collective struggle for survival and resistance, The Flower of War also delves into the psychological and emotional toll that the war took on individuals and communities. The dance drama reflects the trauma and loss experienced by those who lived through the war, particularly in scenes depicting the suffering of civilians and the horrors of battle. Through the use of abstract choreography and fragmented, disjointed movements, the dance explores the psychological scars left by the war, representing the fractured nature of memory and the lasting impact of trauma on the individual[14].

The performers' bodies become a canvas for the expression of internalized pain, loss, and grief. This is particularly evident in scenes where the dancers are shown as isolated, struggling with the emotional weight of their experiences. In these moments, the choreography is slow and contorted, symbolizing the deep emotional scars that remain long after the physical violence has ended. These movements are interspersed with more fluid, harmonious sequences that suggest the possibility of healing and reconciliation, underscoring the theme of hope amid the destruction.

1.2. Influence of Chinese Cultural Elements

As a dance form originating from Latin America, Latin dance has attracted audiences and dancers around the world. Its energetic rhythm, emotional performance and unique dance moves have made it one of the shining stars of world dance. However, with the advancement of globalization, especially in China, Latin dance has gradually integrated local cultural elements to form a unique dance style and form of expression. This article will analyze the influence of Chinese cultural elements on Latin dance from multiple dimensions, and explore how traditional culture can be combined with modern dance art to create a novel and expressive dance form[15].

The history of Latin dance entering China can be traced back to the 1980s. At that time, with the implementation of the reform and opening-up policy, Western cultural and artistic forms gradually flowed into China. Dance, as an important part of it, began to be loved and sought after by the younger generation. In particular, Latin dance, with its passionate expression and high-intensity movements, has attracted the attention of a large number of dance lovers. Initially, Latin dance was mainly displayed in China in the form of Latin dance competitions, but with the popularization of dance education and the penetration of Latin dance culture, more and more Chinese people began to integrate it into their daily lives and social activities.

As the understanding of Latin dance gradually deepened, dancers began to combine elements of traditional Chinese culture with the expression of Latin dance, creating a cross-cultural dance expression[16]. This combination is reflected not only in the integration of dance movements and rhythms, but also in the innovation of dance costumes, music and performance methods.

Latin dance focuses on the expression of flexibility, posture and aura. Especially in court dance, folk dance and opera dance, dancers often express emotions through delicate body movements. Latin dance, on the other hand, tends to be fast and powerful, emphasizing the rhythm and power confrontation of the body. Therefore, there are certain differences in the expression of the two. However, as Chinese dancers study Latin dance in depth, they begin to incorporate some elements of Latin dance into Latin dance movements, such as elegant hand movements, body flexibility and aura regulation, making Latin dance not only full of passion, but also presenting a unique oriental beauty.

For example, the "cha-cha" dance step in Latin dance originally emphasized a quick and precise change of pace, but now many Chinese dancers have added elements such as "light footwork" and "shuffling" in Chinese dance when performing the cha-cha, making the dance more fluid and elegant. In addition, some dancers use more "circle" or "bend" movements in Latin dance when doing fast rotations, making the overall dance more layered.

The rhythm of traditional Chinese music is fundamentally different from Latin music. Traditional Chinese music is mostly based on five tones, emphasizing the change of tone and the expression of emotion, while Latin dance music usually has a strong sense of rhythm and repetitiveness. Chinese folk music often uses traditional instruments such as erhu and flute, while Latin dance music is mainly based on Western instruments such as trumpet and saxophone[17]. Despite this, more and more Chinese dancers have begun to introduce elements of Chinese folk music into Latin dance performances, such as combining the timbre of traditional instruments such as erhu and guzheng with the passionate rhythm of Latin dance, forming a unique "Latin + Chinese" style. Such a combination of music not only broadens the performance space of Latin dance, but also allows elements of Chinese culture to be presented on the international stage.

The costume design of Latin dance usually focuses on showing the dancer's body lines and flexibility of movement. The costumes are usually tight, shiny and dynamic. However, in China, many dancers have begun to incorporate traditional Chinese elements into the design of Latin dance costumes. For example, dancers can add embroidery, dragon and phoenix patterns, satin fabrics and other elements with Chinese cultural symbolic significance to Latin dance costumes. Doing so not only highlights the traditional cultural connotation of the costumes, but also adds visual impact and artistic beauty.

In addition, some dancers will choose traditional Chinese accessories such as jade, gold and silver accessories to match Latin dance costumes during performances[18]. This cross-cultural integration adds a rich visual layering to Latin dance, allowing the audience to not only feel the passion and unrestrainedness of Latin dance when appreciating the dance, but also experience the unique charm of Chinese culture.

The introduction of Chinese cultural elements is also reflected in the stage performance of Latin dance. Unlike the emphasis on personal skills and sexy performance of traditional Western Latin dance, Chinese dance art emphasizes group performance and collective harmony. Therefore, in more and more Latin dance performances, dancers began to express traditional Chinese values, such as unity, harmony, etiquette, etc., through group dance and collective movements. At the same time, many dancers incorporate the performance techniques of Chinese classical dance on the stage, such as using props such as fans and long sleeves to enhance the drama of the performance.

For example, when performing "Samba" or "Cha Cha", dancers may add some traditional Chinese fan dance movements, creating a flowing beauty and rhythm in the dance through fans, forming an artistic effect of the fusion of Eastern and Western cultures.

With the deepening development of globalization, Latin dance has not only been widely spread in Latin America, but also has been rapidly popularized and developed in Asian countries such as China. As a global cultural phenomenon, Latin dance has not only been influenced by the West, but also has undergone different changes in the interaction with other regional cultures. The innovation and localization of Latin dance by Chinese dancers is an important manifestation of global cultural exchanges. This not only reflects the inclusiveness and innovation of Chinese culture, but also demonstrates China's ability to absorb and transform foreign cultures.

Through the platform of Latin dance, China's traditional culture has in-depth exchanges and interactions with other cultures in the world. This cultural integration not only makes Latin dance present a diversified artistic style, but also allows the world to understand and appreciate Chinese traditional culture more.

In summary, the influence of Chinese cultural elements on Latin dance is farreaching and three-dimensional. By integrating Chinese traditional art, music, costumes and philosophical thoughts into Latin dance performances, Chinese dancers not only add a new level of expression to Latin dance, but also make Latin dance a cultural bridge in the context of globalization. This cross-cultural exchange and integration has promoted the dissemination and innovation of Chinese traditional culture, and has also enabled Latin dance to continue to evolve in China and around the world, moving towards a more diversified and international future. The music in The Flower of War is another critical element that reflects Chinese cultural heritage. Traditional Chinese music, with its distinct tonal qualities and use of indigenous instruments such as the pipa, guzheng, and erhu, provides a rich auditory landscape for the performance. These instruments evoke the sounds of ancient China, calling to mind centuries of cultural history. The music creates an emotional atmosphere that enhances the themes of the drama, using melodic motifs that evoke sadness, tension, or hope depending on the action on stage[19].

The role of music in Chinese culture is deeply connected to the emotional and spiritual realm. In traditional Chinese performance art, music is not just a background element; it is an essential component of the storytelling process. In The Flower of War, the music underscores the emotional highs and lows of the characters' experiences. During scenes of battle, the rhythm becomes fast and aggressive, mirroring the chaos and violence of war. In contrast, during moments of peace or reflection, the music slows down, with the use of softer, more melodic tones to convey a sense of hope or introspection.

The blending of traditional Chinese instruments with contemporary sound design techniques also creates a dynamic auditory experience that bridges the gap between the ancient and modern. This fusion reflects the production's broader themes of cultural continuity and transformation—how Chinese culture, rooted in ancient traditions, can evolve and adapt in the face of contemporary challenges.

Beyond the visual and auditory elements, The Flower of War also draws upon deep philosophical concepts embedded in Chinese culture, particularly those found in Confucianism, Taoism, and Chinese Buddhism. These philosophies have long influenced Chinese thought and culture, shaping concepts of morality, duty, balance, and the relationship between humanity and nature.

Confucian ideals of loyalty, filial piety, and honor are evident in the ways the characters interact with one another, especially in their relationships with their families and communities. In scenes where characters face moral dilemmas—whether to fight or to protect loved ones—the influence of Confucianism is palpable. The ethical choices the characters make are guided by these values, and their decisions

carry heavy consequences for their personal honor and the well-being of their families and society.

1.3 Comparison Between the Film and Dance Drama in Portraying War Themes

The portrayal of war in the arts is a powerful means of conveying the emotional, psychological, and moral impact of conflict. Two prominent mediums through which the themes of war have been expressed are film and dance, each offering a unique perspective and artistic language. The film The Flowers of War (2011), directed by Zhang Yimou, and the dance drama The Flower of War offer distinct yet complementary depictions of war and its effects on individuals, society, and culture. While the film offers a detailed narrative enriched by realism and historical context, the dance drama relies on symbolic gestures, choreography, and music to communicate the emotional and psychological depths of war. Both works, however, highlight the horror, sacrifice, and enduring humanity amid the devastation of war, making a cross-medium comparison essential for understanding the versatility of artistic expression in portraying such a complex theme.

The first difference in how war is portrayed in both works lies in the medium of expression and their respective narrative structures. The Flowers of War, directed by Zhang Yimou, is a historical drama film set during the Nanjing Massacre in 1937, a pivotal moment in the Second Sino-Japanese War. The narrative centers around a group of Chinese women and schoolgirls, who seek refuge in a church after the Japanese army invades Nanjing. The protagonist, played by Christian Bale, is a Western man who becomes embroiled in the fate of these women as they face the horrors of war. The film focuses on the direct, brutal experience of violence, suffering, and survival during a specific historical event[20].

In contrast, the dance drama The Flower of War is a more abstract representation of war, relying heavily on symbolism, movement, and the emotional expressions of the dancers to communicate its message.

While the dance drama may share thematic similarities with the film, such as the portrayal of suffering and sacrifice, it is not tethered to a specific historical event. Instead, it uses the universal themes of war to explore the emotional and psychological states of individuals caught in conflict. The dance drama's narrative is conveyed through non-verbal elements, relying on physical movement, music, and visuals to create an emotional and atmospheric understanding of war.

While the film's narrative unfolds through dialogue, characters' actions, and visual storytelling, the dance drama relies on choreography and symbolic gestures to express similar themes.

For example, the film uses graphic scenes of violence and military occupation to depict the harsh realities of war, with scenes of rape, murder, and destruction conveying the trauma and human cost of the conflict. In contrast, the dance drama uses contrasting choreographic elements—graceful, fluid movements for moments of peace, and harsh, angular movements for moments of violence—to symbolize the emotional and physical effects of war.

Both the film and the dance drama address the brutality of war, but they do so in different ways that reflect the respective strengths of their mediums. In The Flowers of War, violence is depicted directly, using visual and auditory elements to convey its horror. The invasion of Nanjing and the atrocities committed by the Japanese army are shown through stark, graphic imagery that depicts the stark realities of the war. The audience witnesses violent confrontations, bombings, and the systematic abuse of civilians. The film also uses close-up shots to capture the intense emotional reactions of the characters, highlighting their suffering and fear. This direct portrayal of violence serves to bring the horror of war to the audience in a very visceral and immediate way[21].

The dance drama, on the other hand, does not depict violence in a literal sense. Instead, it relies on the abstract language of dance to represent the emotional and psychological impact of war. Through the use of movement, the dance drama conveys the tension, trauma, and chaos of conflict. For instance, the choreography may feature abrupt, jarring movements to signify the shock and suddenness of

violence, while slow, fluid gestures may represent moments of peace or hope. The use of body language and non-verbal communication allows the dance drama to focus more on the internal experience of the characters, capturing their emotional responses to violence rather than the graphic depiction of physical harm.

While the film engages the audience directly with the atrocities of war, the dance drama invites the viewer to interpret the emotional responses to those events. It relies on abstraction and symbolism to evoke feelings of anguish, fear, and resilience[22]. The non-verbal nature of the dance drama emphasizes the internal struggles of the characters, while the film's realism allows the audience to confront the physical and societal impacts of war in a more tangible way. In this sense, both works offer complementary approaches to portraying violence and war, one through direct representation and the other through symbolic expression.

One of the most compelling ways in which both the film and the dance drama address the theme of war is through their exploration of the emotional and psychological toll it takes on individuals. In The Flowers of War, the characters are portrayed as fully realized individuals with distinct emotional arcs.

The protagonist, John Miller (Christian Bale), undergoes a profound transformation as he grapples with his role in the lives of the women and girls he is trying to protect. Similarly, the women and schoolgirls trapped in the church experience fear, sorrow, and, ultimately, resilience as they face the horrors of war. The emotional depth of the characters is enhanced by the realistic portrayal of their circumstances, allowing the audience to empathize with their suffering.

The dance drama, while also conveying the emotional weight of war, does so through a more abstract lens. The emotional impact of war is communicated through the dancers' movements, facial expressions, and interactions with one another. For example, a slow, mournful solo might represent the inner grief of a character, while a vigorous, synchronized ensemble might represent the strength and solidarity of a group facing adversity[23].

The lack of spoken dialogue in the dance drama requires the audience to interpret the emotions conveyed through physicality and music. This reliance on the

body as a medium for emotional expression allows the dance drama to engage the viewer on a more visceral, non-verbal level.

Both works portray the psychological toll of war, but they do so in different ways. The film directly shows the trauma and suffering of the characters, offering a narrative that builds empathy through dialogue, plot, and visual storytelling. The dance drama, meanwhile, uses abstract expressions of movement and music to evoke similar emotions, allowing the audience to connect with the characters' inner turmoil without the need for explicit narrative explanations. This creates a more open-ended emotional experience, where the viewer must engage with the art form on a deeper, interpretive level.

A central theme in both The Flowers of War and The Flower of War is the idea of sacrifice and redemption amidst the horrors of war.

In the film, the theme of sacrifice is most evident in the character of John Miller, who, initially motivated by self-interest, ultimately makes a self-sacrificial choice to protect the women and girls in the church. His transformation from a self-serving outsider to a heroic figure reflects the redemptive power of human action in the face of war. The women and girls, too, experience their own forms of sacrifice, whether through their willingness to risk their lives to protect one another or through their moral choices in a time of crisis.

The dance drama also explores the theme of sacrifice, though in a more symbolic and abstract way [51, 52]. The dancers may portray sacrifice through movement motifs that signify the giving up of something important, whether it is personal safety, love, or hope[24]. For example, a dancer may perform a movement that initially appears full of life but gradually becomes slower and more restrained, symbolizing the surrender of personal agency in the face of war. The symbolism of sacrifice is deeply ingrained in the choreography, with the physicality of the movements reflecting the emotional weight of giving up one's own well-being for a greater cause.

The concept of redemption is also portrayed in both works, although through different artistic means. In The Flowers of War, redemption is presented as a personal

journey, where characters, particularly John Miller, move from selfishness to selflessness, finding purpose in the protection of others. In the dance drama, redemption is represented more abstractly, as the dancers' movements may shift from despair and conflict to peace and resolution, signaling the potential for spiritual or emotional renewal even in the most difficult circumstances.

It tells the story of 13 women from the bottom of Nanjing society who sacrifice their lives to save them when they see their compatriots suffering for the national good. The story is very tortuous, and the plot is exciting."" The Flower of War " is a very representative work of dance, performed by many dancers and choreographers, in many different versions. In this dance work, the whole part of the story is performed in the form of a Latin dance.

The afterglow of the setting sun shines through the church with broken stained glass, and dust flew through the air. Dressed in a slightly shabby but still charming cheongsam, they stood in front of the window, with firm and sad eyes. They recall the laughter of the Qinhuai River, it was their free time. With the collapse of the city wall, the arrival of the snowstorm, the crowd fled, showing the chaos after the fall of Nanjing and the panic of the people. Show their nervousness in the face of Japanese atrocities to the courage of tenacity. The last 12 women gradually far away, their calm and tenacious look back, show their righteousness and self-sacrifice spirit.

Exhibition. The singing girls played by the dancers are shown in the church with their rumba movements, which are nervous, sad and strong. Plot: The Japanese search approaching, they pass the courage to each other, ready to respond.

Movement development: the group dance shows unity, and the pas de deux shows special mutual support. There are soothing rumba moves for memories, and the bullfight and samba moves for the tense fear of fighting the search.

climax: sisters or in a circle or gather together, with firm eyes and posture facing the possible disaster, recall the people and things they cherish.

Outcome: the girls gradually go far away, the light is more and more dark, leaving only the back and look back. Show the greatness and fearlessness of human nature in the context of cruel war.

CHAPTER TWO CHOREOGRAPHY AND PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

2.1. Symbolic Use of Movement and Gestures

"The Flowers of War" is a film directed by Zhang Yimou, adapted from Yan Geling's novel of the same name. It tells the story of a group of Nanjing prostitutes and female students of the Kuomintang who made life and death decisions in a church during the Anti-Japanese War against the backdrop of the Nanjing Massacre. The film not only impresses the audience with its profound historical background and humanistic care, but also has received widespread attention for its rich cultural symbols and delicate emotional expression. The characters and emotional experiences in the film are presented through many symbolic movements and gestures, which not only carry the characters' inner conflicts and struggles, but also reflect their human brilliance in extreme situations. If we examine the symbolic meaning of these movements and gestures from the perspective of the Latin dance version, we will see a unique cross-cultural fusion in expressing emotions and dramatic tension. This article will focus on the movements and gestures in "The Flowers of War" and analyze their symbolic meaning, especially how to convey the inner world and emotional fluctuations of the characters through the body language of Latin dance [25].

Latin dance is a dance form that emphasizes passion and emotional expression. Through its unique body language, Latin dance can accurately convey the dancer's inner emotional fluctuations, especially when expressing emotions such as love, contradictions, struggles and conflicts. The characters in The Flowers of War, facing the threat of war, violence and death, also experienced emotional ups and downs and contradictory entanglements. They have the courage to struggle and resist, as well as the determination to sacrifice themselves. These emotions are reflected in many details in the film, especially in the body language and movement performance of the characters, which can resonate with the performance of Latin dance.

For example, in the film, the behavior and movements of prostitutes in their daily lives often carry a tension full of sexiness and temptation, which is similar to some steps of Latin dance, such as the chest and hip movements in the cha-cha and

rumba. Behind these movements, the characters' desire for survival and rebellion against fate are hidden[26]. Although these movements in Latin dance usually have a certain sensuality, the emotions they convey are complex and multifaceted, including temptation, desire and self-display, as well as the exploration and pursuit of emotional belonging and love.

For example, in The Flowers of War, when the prostitute Xiaohong faced the choice before the massacre, her movements showed a contradictory emotion: both a struggle against life and death and a surrender to fate. If this emotion is transplanted into the steps of Latin dance, we can see that she may make steps similar to those full of tension and entanglement in rumba dance, and the twisting and rotation of the limbs show the inner struggle and repeated fluctuations of emotions.

In "The Flowers of War", gestures are an important tool for the characters to express their emotions, and they have a strong symbolic meaning. Whether in sadness, fear, anger, or in the expression of courage and determination, the characters show their complex inner world through gestures. In Latin dance, gestures are also an important means of conveying emotions and performing power. In Latin dance, the extension of arms, the pointing of fingers, and the movement of hands are often closely related to the catharsis of emotions. Dancers use different gestures to make emotions more intuitive and powerful[27].

In the film, the prostitutes' rebellion against fate before death is often expressed by a movement of raising their arms and clenching their fists, which can be contrasted with the "power" gestures in Latin dance. Some movements in Latin dance, such as arm extension in cha-cha and hand swing in samba, can convey the intense emotions of the characters to the audience through body movements. When we transplant these gestures into the context of The Flowers of War, they not only show the characters' determination to fight oppression, but also convey their indomitable spirit even in the face of death. For example, in some important scenes in the film, the prostitutes showed their courage and determination in the face of death by clasping their hands and pointing their fingers to the sky. If this symbolic gesture is presented in Latin dance, it will show a strong emotional impact.

Each character in The Flowers of War carries different emotional levels. From the self-sacrifice of the prostitute Xiaohong to the emotional exploration of the student Annie, to the submission and resistance of the women in the church to fate, each character shows a different emotional state under the extreme historical background. Latin dance can well convey the different aspects of these emotions through its layered body expression.

For example, Xiaohong's emotional development in the film is complex: she has both a desire for love and life and a fear of death. Her every move carries a strong emotional tension. If we map Xiaohong's emotional changes to the movements of Latin dance, her emotions are like the fast-paced steps in the cha-cha dance, showing a sense of contradiction and conflict. The emotional expression of Latin dance is just like the characterization in "The Flowers of War", which is profound, complex and full of tension.

At the same time, another important element in the film - the relationship between the characters and the environment, can also be reflected to a certain extent through the steps and movements of Latin dance. In the film, the movements of prostitutes and other characters often interact with the surrounding environment, especially when facing death, the movements of the characters often reveal a sense of confrontation with the environment[28]. Some movements in Latin dance, such as the rebound steps in salsa dance and the twisting movements in cha-cha, can create a confrontation with the outside world in the dance, thereby deepening the emotional layering of the characters.

In "The Flowers of War", death is always an unavoidable theme. The film shows the helplessness and self-salvation in the face of death through the delicate depiction of the inner world of the characters. The expression of Latin dance, especially when expressing pain, struggle, giving up and self-transcendence, can often show complex emotions and thoughts through a unique dance language. In the film, the prostitutes choose to voluntarily sacrifice themselves to protect the female students in the

church. Although their sacrifice and redemption process is full of tragedy, it also shows the nobility and greatness of human nature.

If Latin dance is used to express this emotional climax, we can imagine that after the dancer makes a series of soft but powerful dance steps, he suddenly turns into a tense movement, which has both a sense of intense conflict and a sense of tranquility after letting go of all burdens[29]. This emotional transition is like the process of the characters in the film from despair to liberation. Some difficult movements in Latin dance, such as the slow steps in the rumba combined with passionate rotation, are the perfect way to express this emotional ups and downs.

Through the analysis of the Latin dance version, we can find that the movements and postures in "The Flowers of War" are not only tools for expressing the emotions of the characters, but also carry profound cultural symbols and symbolic meanings. In Latin dance, the emotional tension of these movements and postures can be expressed at a deeper level, making the emotions of the characters in the movie more three-dimensional and vivid. The body language of Latin dance combined with the emotional theme of "The Flowers of War" not only allows us to feel the life and death choices under the historical background, but also gives us a deeper understanding of the complexity of human nature.

For example, the use of circular movements in certain sections of the dance may symbolize the cyclical nature of violence and war. Just as the circle has no beginning or end, the war is depicted as an unending cycle of destruction and suffering. The repetitive nature of these movements can be interpreted as a metaphor for the inescapable nature of conflict, where the patterns of violence are repeated, and there seems to be no end in sight[30].

On the other hand, linear movements may symbolize the linear progression of time, especially when characters move towards a specific goal, such as survival or freedom. As the dancers move along straight lines or in unidirectional formations, they represent the drive for resolution or escape from the ravages of war. This use of line versus circle in the choreography creates a stark contrast between the cyclical nature of violence and the linear hope for an end to the conflict.

The incorporation of stillness in the choreography is also a powerful symbol in war-themed dance. In moments of stillness, where dancers freeze or hold particular positions, the silence becomes an emotional and symbolic representation of the devastation and loss brought by war. The absence of movement is, in itself, a movement—one that speaks to the lives lost, the destruction of communities, and the quiet mourning of those left behind. In such moments, the audience is invited to reflect on the emptiness left in the wake of war, where words and actions become irrelevant, and only the stillness of grief remains.

2.2. Integration of Traditional and Modern Dance Techniques

In the world of dance, the integration of traditional and modern techniques is an exciting and innovative process that allows choreographers to create works that resonate with contemporary audiences while remaining connected to cultural roots. In The Flower of War, the blending of traditional and modern dance styles serves as a powerful tool to express the dual themes of cultural heritage and the traumatic impact of war.

The dance drama skillfully combines Latin dance forms with modern, experimental movements, creating a hybrid choreography that amplifies both the historical and emotional layers of the story. The integration of these techniques allows the choreographers to evoke the strength of Chinese cultural heritage, while also using the flexibility and dynamism of modern dance to reflect the psychological and emotional turmoil caused by war. Through this marriage of tradition and modernity, The Flower of War not only preserves important cultural expressions but also reinvents them for contemporary audiences, reflecting the impact of historical and social changes on artistic forms[31].

(1)Latin dance Techniques and Their Symbolism

Latin dance, with its long history and rich vocabulary of movement, plays a central role in the dance drama The Flower of War. The use of traditional forms allows the dance to communicate a deep sense of cultural continuity, grounding the work in China's ancient aesthetic and symbolic traditions. Latin dance techniques,

including movements rooted in classical Chinese ballet (known as guozhuang), Latin Dance, and ritualistic movements, contribute significantly to the portrayal of specific cultural values, such as filial piety, respect for nature, and the preservation of familial and communal bonds in times of adversity.

In The Flower of War, Latin dance is employed to evoke the beauty of Chinese culture and the emotional depth of its people, especially in moments that deal with themes of sacrifice, love, and devotion. One of the most prominent features of Latin dance is its emphasis on fluidity, grace, and balance. The use of controlled, circular movements reflects the philosophical concept of yin and yang—the harmonious interplay between opposing forces. In the context of war, this can be interpreted as the characters' struggle to find balance in an environment of chaos and destruction. The flowing, circular movements symbolize the continuity of life and culture, which, despite the ravages of war, endure in the hearts and minds of the characters. The subtle yet powerful use of traditional movements to express inner calm amidst external turmoil highlights the strength of Chinese cultural resilience.

Latin Dance elements are also significant in The Flower of War. These dances, often characterized by earthy, grounded movements and vibrant formations, represent the connection to the land and the collective spirit of the people. Through Latin Dance, the choreographers reinforce the themes of unity and survival. The use of Latin Dance elements emphasizes the importance of community and solidarity, which, during war, become key sources of strength. When the characters come together in group formations, the energy of Latin Dance not only conveys solidarity but also the strength that arises when individuals work together for a common cause.

Ritualistic movements are another important component of Latin dance that permeates The Flower of War. These movements, drawn from Chinese religious and ceremonial practices, serve to represent the characters' spiritual responses to the hardships of war[32]. In traditional Chinese rituals, movement is often used to symbolize devotion, offering, and reverence—an important aspect of maintaining cultural identity. In the dance drama, these gestures evoke moments of reverence, such as the offerings made to ancestors or the symbolic acts of mourning for the

dead. These rituals are integrated into the choreography to convey the characters' emotional and spiritual responses to the war, underscoring themes of remembrance, loss, and the continuity of cultural values in the face of destruction.

(2) Modern Dance Techniques and Their Role in Expressing War's Impact

While Latin dance provides the foundation for The Flower of War, modern dance techniques introduce a more flexible, dynamic, and expressive movement vocabulary that reflects the psychological, emotional, and social consequences of war. Modern dance, with its emphasis on freedom of expression and individuality, allows for greater complexity in portraying the internal struggles of the characters. The use of contemporary styles such as contemporary ballet, jazz, and even urban dance in certain scenes contributes to the emotional intensity of the drama, particularly in scenes depicting violence, trauma, and psychological conflict.

Modern dance techniques allow for sharper, more fragmented movements that mirror the disorientation, confusion, and chaos of war. For instance, the incorporation of angular, erratic movements, where the body contorts or falls abruptly, symbolizes the shock and trauma experienced by the characters[33]. These movements reflect the disintegration of the individuals' sense of security and control, as their bodies physically react to the violence and unpredictability of war. The use of floor work in modern dance, where dancers use the floor as a medium of expression, may symbolize the characters' desperation, exhaustion, or vulnerability. This physical connection with the ground conveys the emotional weight of trauma, as the characters are literally and metaphorically weighed down by the horrors of war.

Furthermore, modern dance techniques often prioritize the personal, internal experience of the dancer, which aligns with the psychological focus in The Flower of War. Dancers may explore the tension between personal and collective experiences of war, as their movements express the struggle between maintaining individuality and the necessity of becoming part of a larger group effort for survival. For example, solo sequences in modern dance may be used to depict characters' internal conflicts, such as moral dilemmas, personal sacrifice, or the haunting effects of violence, while group sequences represent the need for solidarity, collective action, and survival.

In addition to the physical movement vocabulary, modern dance also introduces a more abstract and experimental approach to choreography. The use of non-linear movement sequences, juxtaposed with fragmented, repetitive actions, mirrors the fractured nature of memory, trauma, and survival in wartime. These unconventional, abstract movements serve to express the disjointed experience of those affected by war—where time, identity, and relationships often lose their coherence. The combination of abstract modern movement with the clear, defined structures of Latin dance creates a unique narrative space where both the external events of war and the of the internal psychological experiences characters can be expressed simultaneously[34].

(3)The Fusion of Tradition and Modernity: A Metaphor for Cultural Continuity Amidst Conflict

The integration of traditional and modern dance techniques in The Flower of War is not just a stylistic choice but also a metaphor for the cultural continuity and resilience that define the Chinese people, even in the face of overwhelming adversity. War, by its nature, disrupts social structures, destroys lives, and attempts to erase history. In this context, the blending of traditional and modern dance techniques symbolizes the ability of cultural heritage to adapt to and survive the ravages of conflict. It reflects how the Chinese people, represented by the characters in the dance drama, navigate the tensions between tradition and the forces of modernity, and how they preserve and reinvent their cultural identity in the face of destruction.

Through the integration of traditional and modern techniques, the dance drama suggests that while war may temporarily disrupt the course of history and the continuity of culture, it is ultimately through the fusion of old and new that a society can rebuild and recover. Just as the choreography fuses traditional grace with modern dynamism, the Chinese people are depicted as adapting to new realities while holding fast to their cultural roots. The incorporation of modern techniques emphasizes the adaptability of culture, while the traditional movements remind the audience of the unbroken link between past, present, and future [35].

The marriage of traditional and modern dance also reflects the complexity of the war itself. Traditional forms, with their emphasis on stability, continuity, and collective unity, contrast with the disruptive, chaotic nature of modern dance, which mirrors the breakdown of social order and individual identity in wartime. The choreographic fusion illustrates the tension between maintaining cultural identity and the necessity of embracing change in response to external circumstances. This tension is symbolic of the broader conflict faced by individuals and societies caught in the crossfire of historical upheaval, where survival often requires a delicate balance between preservation and transformation.

The integration of traditional and modern dance techniques in The Flower of War serves as a powerful and multifaceted tool for storytelling, thematic exploration, and cultural expression. By blending the grace, fluidity, and symbolism of Latin dance with the emotional intensity and expressive freedom of modern dance, the choreography becomes a reflection of the thematic tensions between cultural heritage and the traumatic impact of war. The fusion of these dance styles not only enhances the narrative but also conveys a deeper message about the resilience of cultural identity, the complexity of human emotions in times of conflict, and the potential for adaptation and renewal in the face of destruction. Through this integration, The Flower of War becomes a poignant reminder of the enduring power of art, tradition, and cultural memory in times of crisis..

2.3 Emotional Impact Conveyed Through Performers' Expressions

In any form of performance art, the emotional connection between the performer and the audience is crucial for conveying the underlying themes of the work. In The Flower of War, this connection is achieved not only through movement but also through the performers' facial expressions, gestures, and physical presence on stage. Dance, as a highly visual and emotional medium, has the unique ability to convey complex emotional landscapes without words[36]. In The Flower of War, the

dancers' expressions become the conduit through which the audience experiences the pain, hope, resilience, and despair of the characters in the context of war.

This section will explore how the dancers' facial expressions, body language, and overall presence on stage contribute to the emotional depth of the production. We will analyze how these elements help convey the individual and collective trauma of the characters, explore the internal conflicts they face, and highlight the emotional journey from fear and despair to survival and hope. By examining specific scenes and dance sequences, we will see how performers' expressions add an additional layer of meaning to the choreography, amplifying its emotional impact.

(1) The Power of Facial Expressions in Conveying Emotional Nuances

Facial expressions play a pivotal role in dance, particularly in works like The Flower of War, where the emotional subtext of the performance is central to the narrative. Dance, by nature, is a visual art form that communicates through the body, but facial expressions provide an immediate and powerful way for the performer to communicate their emotional state. In the context of war, where emotions like fear, grief, sorrow, and hope are felt deeply, the subtlety and intensity of a dancer's facial expressions can transform a movement into a poignant statement of inner conflict.

The use of facial expressions in The Flower of War is especially critical during scenes of violence and trauma. For instance, when the characters are subjected to moments of terror or violence, the performers' faces contort with expressions of fear, helplessness, or anger. These expressions are not exaggerated or overly theatrical but are instead subtle and nuanced, in line with the understated nature of Chinese cultural performances. The quiet intensity of the performers' expressions draws the audience into the characters' emotional world, making the violence more palpable and emotionally charged.

One striking example of the use of facial expression to convey internal emotional states occurs during the moments when the characters face overwhelming loss or encounter the harsh reality of war. As the dancers move through intricate sequences of despair, their faces often remain frozen in a mixture of sorrow and disbelief, capturing the disbelief of individuals who are thrust into the chaos of war.

The slight furrowing of the brow, the downturned mouth, and the distant gaze convey a profound sense of loss and helplessness. The dancers' faces become a canvas upon which the trauma of war is painted, amplifying the emotional weight of the performance[37].

Moreover, the emotional intensity of these moments is often heightened by the performers' ability to maintain eye contact, either with other dancers or the audience, creating a direct connection that draws the viewers into the emotional world of the performance. For instance, during moments of interpersonal conflict or during group dances where the performers struggle against overwhelming odds, the eye contact and the intensity of the performers' gaze can act as a silent form of communication. This creates an emotional bridge between the characters and the audience, allowing the latter to feel the same tension and pain that the characters are experiencing[38].

On the other hand, moments of hope and resilience are marked by a shift in the dancers' facial expressions. When the characters express their determination to survive or hold onto their cultural identity, the performers' faces soften, and the tension in their features is replaced with expressions of resolve and strength. The upward tilt of the chin, the firmness in the jawline, and the openness in the eyes symbolize the character's refusal to be defeated. These subtle yet powerful expressions of hope act as emotional counterpoints to the moments of despair, creating a sense of emotional contrast that is both uplifting and inspiring.

(2)Body Language and Gesture: Expressing Internal Conflict and Collective Trauma

In addition to facial expressions, body language and gestures are integral to conveying emotional depth in The Flower of War. The choreography in this dance drama requires the performers to use their bodies to tell stories of fear, survival, love, and sacrifice. These movements often reflect the internal psychological struggles of the characters, as well as the collective trauma experienced by individuals in wartime.

In the dance sequences depicting violence, for example, the performers use sudden, sharp, and jerky movements to reflect the shock and terror of battle. The body becomes a canvas on which the brutality of war is portrayed, with movements

that evoke the chaos and fear experienced by the characters. The dancers' bodies may collapse in exhaustion or twist in pain, illustrating the physical and emotional toll of the war. These movements go beyond mere physicality; they are emotional expressions of suffering that the audience can viscerally feel. The angularity of these movements, the collapsing of the body, and the way dancers fall to the floor with a sense of weightlessness all serve as expressions of fragility and vulnerability in the face of violence[39].

Additionally, the use of group choreography and synchronized movements is essential for conveying the collective trauma of war. In scenes where large groups of dancers are involved, the collective body of the group becomes a symbol of shared experience and community. The performers' synchronized movements, whether they are in unison or counterpoint, reflect the communal nature of survival. The tension in the group sequences, as dancers push against one another or struggle to maintain balance in chaotic, shifting formations, reflects the disintegration of order in times of war. These sequences emphasize that the trauma of war is not just individual but shared, and the emotional burden is carried collectively by the group.

Moreover, the use of dance as a ritualistic expression—where movements are repeated in cyclical patterns—adds a layer of emotional resonance. These repetitive gestures can symbolize the cyclical nature of trauma, as the characters are trapped in the unending cycles of conflict and loss. The constant repetition of certain movements serves to highlight the feeling of being stuck in a traumatic moment, unable to escape the brutal reality of war. The dancers' commitment to these repetitive gestures, often performed with intensity and precision, communicates the emotional weight of being caught in a cycle of violence and destruction [40].

One particularly poignant use of gesture occurs in the moments when the characters attempt to hold onto their cultural identity amidst the destruction of war. The dancers incorporate traditional Chinese movements, such as those associated with classical dance and Latin traditions, into the choreography. These movements are typically slower, more graceful, and measured, standing in stark contrast to the sharp, chaotic movements of war. The stillness of these gestures and the control

required to execute them convey a deep sense of inner peace and cultural pride, even when the external environment is fraught with turmoil. These symbolic movements act as a gesture of resistance—through the persistence of cultural identity, the characters endure the emotional toll of war.

(3) The Role of the Performer's Emotional Investment in Conveying Themes

One of the most remarkable aspects of the emotional impact conveyed through performers' expressions in The Flower of War is the degree of emotional investment the dancers bring to the performance. Unlike other art forms that may rely on external factors such as costume or setting to convey emotion, dance relies heavily on the performer's ability to channel their own emotional state into the movement. The intensity of the emotional experience is directly linked to the physical expression, and in The Flower of War, this intensity is palpable throughout the entire production.

The performers, through their commitment to the emotional truths of their characters, allow the audience to feel the weight of the historical context. The emotions of grief, fear, and hope that the characters experience are not abstract or theoretical; they are embodied in the physicality of the dancers. This connection to the dancers' emotions helps to humanize the narrative, allowing the audience to connect with the characters not just on an intellectual level but on an emotional level. By embodying the raw emotional landscape of war, the performers allow the audience to experience the emotional resonance of the story in a visceral way.

In many of the more emotionally charged scenes, the performers' emotional investment is shown through the subtlety of their gestures and movements. The quiet tension in the dancers' shoulders, the hesitation in a movement before it is completed, and the micro-expressions that flicker across their faces all work together to create a rich emotional landscape. These subtleties allow the performers to express complex emotions such as inner conflict, fear of loss, and the desire for survival in a nuanced way.

The emotional impact of The Flower of War is deeply connected to the performers' ability to convey their inner emotional states through their facial expressions, body language, and gestures. Through their physicality, the dancers

bring to life the emotional intensity of war, allowing the audience to feel the pain, hope, and despair that the characters experience. The use of facial expressions to reflect inner conflict, the powerful gestures that embody trauma, and the emotional investment of the performers all work in tandem to elevate the emotional depth of the performance. This emotional resonance is what makes The Flower of War not just a visual spectacle but a profound emotional journey that stays with the audience long after the performance ends. The dancers' expressions and physicality are the heart of the work, and they communicate the complex emotional truths of the characters in a way that transcends words and becomes a universal experience.

CHAPTER THREE TECHNICAL AND AESTHETIC ELEMENTS

3.1 Role of Music and Sound in Enhancing the Drama

In the performance of Latin dance The Flowers of War, the role of music and sound is crucial in elevating drama and emotional expression. Based on the historical background of the Nanjing Massacre and the story of The Flowers of War, the dance combines technical and aesthetic elements to convey complex themes of courage, sacrifice and humanity through dance movements, musical rhythms and stage presence.

In the Latin dance interpretation of "13 Flowers of War", music and sound are not only the guide of the plot, but also the amplifier of emotion. Latin dance is known for its complex rhythms, fluid movements and passionate expressions, making it an ideal medium to convey this historical story. The choice of music in a dance is crucial in determining whether the performance can capture the essence of history and emotion. For example, the combination of traditional Chinese instruments and Latin rhythms forms a contrast of cultural convergence that both embodies the uniqueness of the story and highlights its universality.

The rumba and paso doble in Latin dance are particularly effective in this type of performance. Rumba conveys sadness and longing with his slow and intense movements, and his unique wave movements can express the emotional struggles of the characters in difficult situations. When combined with strings or percussion instruments that symbolize the ambience of war, Rumba becomes a narrative tool capable of deeply reflecting the sadness and helplessness of the story.

The paso doble infused the performance with an element of defiance and heroism. This dance is known for its sense of drama and power, often accompanied by strong rhythms and imperative music, mimicking scenes of war or conflict. In the dances of The Flowers of War, this power and shock of the paso doble can symbolize the tenacity and collective will of the characters, creating an atmosphere full of challenge and confrontation. Musical choices can include drumming or metal clatter

to reinforce the metaphors of war, elevate the dramatic tension of the performance, and bring the audience deeper into the core emotion of the story.

In the dance work "13 Flowers of War", the combination of Latin dance technique and music is very important. Latin dance techniques include precise body control, complex footwork, and the ability to express emotions through movement. In the slower and more sorrowful parts of the music, dancers can express the character's grief and vulnerability through controlled hip rotation and arm extension. When these movements fit perfectly with the rhythm of the music, they can trigger strong resonance from the audience.

In fast or intense parts of the music, dancers can use rapid rotation, sharp stop movements, and synchronized group choreography to express unity and resistance. Choreographers need to ensure that these movements are tightly integrated with the musical structure, introducing moments of stillness through pauses and changes in the music, thereby increasing the tension and drama of the performance.

Improvisation is also an important means to enhance performance. Adding improvisational expression to Latin dance allows dancers to react to subtle variations in live music, creating spontaneous representations that reveal the complexity and uncertainty of the story. Improvisational parts are especially good for chaotic or emotional scenes, making the performance more realistic and shocking.

Aesthetic elements such as costumes and lighting are also important factors in how music and sound are perceived on stage. Clothing design can integrate traditional Chinese clothing and elements symbolizing the war environment, echoing the combination of music, the Middle East and the West. For example, the Rumba section of the costume can be made of soft, flowing fabrics to highlight the elegance of the dance, while the Paso doble section uses more resolute costumes, symbolizing the transition from grief to defiance. Musical rhythms and melodies guide the transition of these costume and dance elements, maintaining the dramatic coherence of the entire performance.

Lighting also plays a crucial role in enhancing the emotional atmosphere. In Rumba passages, soft, dim lighting can create an atmosphere of contemplation and grief that echoes the lyricism of the music. In paso doble passages, strong, bright lights are paired with strong rhythmic music to create a visual effect of conflict and confrontation, highlighting the tension and drama of the performance.

In short, in the Latin dance interpretation of "13 Flowers of War", music and sound not only enhance the technical performance of the dance, but also deeply show the complexity of history and humanity through emotional expression and aesthetic presentation. This combination of music, movement and stage elements makes dance not just a performance, but a profound experience of culture and emotion[41].

The shift in musical tone also reflects the gradual emotional journey of the performance, moving from tension and fear to moments of hope and resilience. As the characters begin to find strength amidst the chaos of war, the music transitions into more uplifting, harmonic passages. The presence of uplifting themes in the music helps to emphasize the characters' ability to survive, adapt, and hold onto their humanity, even in the face of overwhelming adversity. These moments of musical resolution serve as emotional counterpoints to the violence and despair, offering a sense of hope that resonates with the audience.

One of the most striking aspects of the music in The Flower of War is its blend of traditional and contemporary elements. The use of traditional Chinese instruments, combined with more modern orchestral compositions, creates a unique soundscape that reflects the cultural and historical setting of the production. The integration of these musical elements adds layers of meaning, providing both cultural context and emotional depth to the narrative.

Traditional Chinese instruments such as the erhu (a two-stringed bowed instrument), pipa (a plucked string instrument), and guzheng (a zither-like instrument) are used throughout the performance to evoke the cultural heritage and historical background of the story. These instruments, with their distinctive tones, have the ability to convey a deep sense of cultural identity and emotional resonance. In The Flower of War, the traditional instruments are often employed during

moments of cultural significance, such as scenes that reflect the characters' connection to their traditions or their memories of a peaceful past. The melancholic sound of the erhu, for instance, is used to evoke the sorrow of the characters as they remember their lost homes or families. The gentle plucking of the pipa may symbolize moments of nostalgia, while the guzheng's serene melodies can convey a sense of calm and reflection amidst the chaos of wa[42].

On the other hand, the incorporation of contemporary orchestral music and modern soundscapes adds a layer of intensity and urgency to the performance. Modern percussion instruments, brass, and electronic elements are used during battle sequences and moments of high drama, creating a powerful contrast to the traditional instruments. The tension created by the clash of these two musical worlds reflects the juxtaposition of the characters' cultural heritage with the violent, disruptive force of war. This fusion of traditional and contemporary elements underscores the theme of survival in a rapidly changing world and emphasizes the characters' ability to endure despite the disorienting nature of the conflict they face.

The blending of these two musical styles also serves to highlight the fusion of past and present within the characters' experience. As they navigate the horrors of war, the characters are constantly balancing their memories of the past with the harsh realities of the present. The music mirrors this duality, with the traditional instruments representing the characters' cultural roots and the modern elements symbolizing the traumatic present. The juxtaposition of these sounds emphasizes the tension between the characters' desire to hold onto their heritage and their need to adapt to the demands of survival.

In addition to the music, sound effects play a crucial role in enhancing the atmosphere of war in The Flower of War. Sound effects, such as explosions, gunfire, and the distant sounds of battle, are used strategically to immerse the audience in the wartime setting. These sounds are not just incidental; they serve to heighten the emotional intensity of the performance and make the abstract concept of war feel immediate and tangible.

For example, during scenes of intense combat, the sudden bursts of gunfire or the deafening roar of explosions disrupt the relative silence of the stage, jarring the audience into the harsh reality of war. The loud, abrupt sounds create a sense of urgency and fear, heightening the physicality of the dance and underscoring the danger and chaos that the characters face. These sound effects are often paired with quick, sharp movements in the choreography, adding a visceral element to the performance that emphasizes the physical and emotional violence of war.

In more reflective moments, the absence of sound can also be just as powerful as the inclusion of it. In scenes where the characters are mourning or contemplating their losses, the absence of sound creates a haunting stillness that allows the performers' expressions and movements to take center stage. The silence becomes a tool for reflection, forcing the audience to confront the emotional weight of the characters' experiences. The juxtaposition of intense sound with moments of quiet introspection underscores the emotional tension of the narrative, allowing the audience to experience both the chaos and the quiet sorrow of war.

Beyond their role in creating atmosphere and enhancing emotion, music and sound also function as narrative drivers in The Flower of War. In this dance drama, the music does more than accompany the action; it drives the story forward, shaping the rhythm of the narrative and guiding the audience through the various emotional peaks and valleys of the performance.

The pacing of the music plays a significant role in shaping the structure of the performance. The rapid, percussive rhythms during battle scenes propel the action forward, creating a sense of urgency and accelerating the tempo of the choreography. In contrast, the slower, more introspective melodies during moments of reflection or loss create a sense of stillness and contemplation, allowing the audience to process the emotional gravity of the situation. These shifts in musical pacing mirror the shifts in the characters' emotional journeys, ensuring that the audience is emotionally in sync with the narrative[43].

Additionally, the thematic motifs in the music help to reinforce the key messages of the story. For example, recurring musical themes associated with specific characters or emotional states create a sonic throughline that helps to unify the narrative. The reappearance of certain musical phrases during pivotal moments in the story can evoke a sense of continuity, signaling to the audience that the themes of war, survival, and loss are ever-present and constantly evolving. This reinforces the cyclical nature of trauma and the enduring impact of war on those who experience it.

In The Flower of War, music and sound are not merely decorative elements but integral components of the narrative and emotional structure of the performance. Through the use of traditional and contemporary musical elements, the strategic incorporation of sound effects, and the careful pacing of the music, the production enhances its emotional impact and deepens the audience's engagement with the story. Music and sound work in tandem with the choreography, performers' expressions, and the overall thematic framework to create an immersive, emotionally charged experience[44]. By reflecting the psychological and emotional landscapes of the characters, reinforcing the atmosphere of war, and driving the narrative forward, music and sound become essential tools in communicating the profound themes of the dance drama. Through these auditory elements, The Flower of War captures the intense emotional journey of its characters and immerses the audience in the emotional and historical context of the war, making the performance not only a visual but also an auditory exploration of human suffering, resilience, and hope.

3.2 Costume Design and Its Symbolic Meaning

In the Latin dance performance of "13 Flowers of War", the costume design has profound symbolic significance, not only enriching the visual presentation of the stage, but also strengthening the overall dramatic and emotional expression. The choice of costume design and its symbolism are crucial to the delivery of the story and the development of the characters, and they help the audience to understand the plot and the inner world of the characters more deeply through interaction with dance movements, music and stage lighting.

In the dance of "13 Flowers of War", the costume design needed to combine elements of traditional Chinese culture and war background, symbolizing the despair and hope faced by people in the social turmoil at that time. In order to reflect the historical context of this period, the costumes may incorporate the traditional Chinese dress style of the 1930s, such as cheongsam, robe, etc., which not only shows the feminine beauty and elegance of the characters, but also symbolizes their tenacity and unyielding in the turbulent times. The use of cheongpao in dance can especially highlight the delicate and flexible female roles. In the soft dance movements, the swing and fluctuation of the long dress bring smooth visual effects, which complement the emotional ups and downs of Rumba.

In the more conflicted and dramatic parts of the dance, such as the paso doble, the costume may employ design elements that are more resolute and emblematic of power, such as deep colors, tough cuts, and structured costumes. Such costumes not only reinforce the imagery of struggle and resistance in the dance, but also highlight the character's indomitable spirit and determination. The combat-like dancing and intense movements of the paso doble echoed these costumes, making the whole scene even more shocking.

The color choice of costumes plays a crucial role in stage performance, helping to convey mood and plot. Color can not only create atmosphere, but also have a strong symbolic meaning. For example, soft white and light tones can symbolize innocence and hope at the beginning of the dance, while dark red or black are gradually introduced as the drama progresses to suggest tension, conflict, and tragedy. Red has a special meaning in Chinese culture, symbolizing both vitality and passion, as well as sacrifice and suffering. Red clothing can convey a symbol of courage and determination when portraying scenes in which characters act bravely to protect others.

Black is often used in scenes of darkness and despair, especially in portraying the oppression and plight of war. The dancers dressed in black, through the powerful steps and determined eyes, the whole stage filled with solemn and solemn atmosphere. This design choice, combined with the low melody and slow tempo of the music, further enhances the emotional depth and immerses the audience in the tragic atmosphere.

The fabric choice of the costume also affects the visual and sensory effects of the dance. Lightweight silk or yarn fabrics are suitable for Rumba dance passages, and the fabric fluctuates with the dancer's movements, creating a soft visual effect that echoes the flow and warbling of the steps. In the paso doble part, the fabric can choose a stiffer fabric to highlight the power of the movement and the drama of the dance. This choice can strengthen the dancer's posture, making each movement more distinct and powerful.

Details such as embroidery, patterns and accessories also play a finishing role in the symbolic meaning of clothing. Embroidery patterns can be selected with symbolic Chinese traditional elements, such as the peony symbolizing wealth and toughness, plum blossom symbolizing the spirit of perseverance in a harsh environment. Accessories such as hairpins and necklaces can also help to express a character's identity and inner emotions, for example, a self-sacrificing character may wear accessories that symbolize loyalty and sacrifice.

The costume design does not exist in isolation, but is closely integrated with other elements of the dance such as lighting and music. In the stage performance, the gloss and texture of the costume can interact with the effect of the lighting. For example, when a light is projected on a silk garment, it creates a flowing light and shadow, further enriching the visual effect. This kind of interaction is especially important when it comes to showing the inner emotional conflict and transformation of the characters. Alternating light and dark lighting combined with the reflective nature of the costume can emphasize the dancers' expressions and movements, making the whole scene more dramatic.

In addition, the design of the costume must also consider the comfort of the dancer and the fluency of the performance. Latin dance is known for its dynamic movements and intricate spins, and costumes must provide an aesthetic effect while not impeding the dancers' movements. This requires designers to make trade-offs

between material selection and tailoring, so that the garment can be functional as well as aesthetic.

In short, the costume design in Latin dance "13 Flowers of War" is not only a display of visual aesthetics, but also a symbol of emotion and history. Through the combination of color, fabric, details and overall design, the costumes perfectly present the inner world of the characters and the theme of the dance, allowing the audience to understand and experience this historical story more deeply[45].

For the thirteen hairpins, the style of cheongsam is based on the drag-floor cheongsam style of the 1930s, and the change of character's identity and environment leads to the selection of different fabrics and colors to express the role. The life dress image of the Thirteen Hairpins in the escape segment adopts the nine-minute long-sleeved cheongsam with worn velvet fabric as the main body. In addition to the vertical bars and floral patterns popular at that time, there are many geometric or abstract decorative patterns, which are close to the fashion trend of art deco in the 1930s. Cheongsam with different high saturation and low brightness colors, with the same color of the coat, help the dance drama to express the dark cellar environment.

Qin Huai beautiful picture segment is the colorful part of the dance drama, the performance of the war under the destruction of human change, as well as the face of the brutal Japanese army and the cold Nanjing city, in an old dream of the pure scene, a lot of "idle dream far, the south is Fang spring" meaning. Compared with the heavy design style of the whole play, the pure colors and colorful fabrics on the clothing will also make this scene as dazzling as the diamond section. It is also the "real" feeling in the reality and the "virtual" feeling in the memory, and the good time between the virtual and the real reflects the sadness of the past[46].

The images of the dead spirit of the Thirteen hairpin in the prologia and the final film are contrasted with the complexity of Qinhuai's beautiful image by using a solid white fabric with a minimalist black pipe structure and a refined handcrafted flower button, symbolizing the sacrifice of the song girl, symbolizing the sublimation of her soul, and exploring a variety of expression space of the Qipao language.

The second act of escape and the overall tone of the basement is thick and beautiful, in the era of smoke like a tenacious blooming dodder flower, to the ruins of the city of Nanjing to add a thick and heavy color. Gorgeous but not gaudy is the focus of two acts and three acts, the overall tone is still to cumbersome, retain character temperament, makeup complex and not miscellaneous, restore the suffering under the full female glory, makeup no longer highlights the enchanting charm of the group of singing girls, and more highlight the tragic, aesthetic and advanced female characters of this dance drama[47].

The design element of the overall makeup is based on the female image of old Shanghai in the 1930s as a reference to establish a sense of time. At the same time, the intangible cultural heritage of Jiangsu Province - velvet flower is used as the character decoration, highlighting the regional characteristics of the work and echoing the theme of female flowers[48]. The hairstyles of the thirteen singing girls are based on the classic hand push ripple, which is distinguished according to the different personalities of the characters.

The presentation of different group images, the contrast between virtual and real, is one of the key points of the design of the makeup. It focuses on distinguishing the image characteristics of singing girls, students, contrarians and masses, highlighting the contrast between softness and reality. Singing girls and students do not show too much the mess and confusion in the escape, and use the crowd to help explain the cold and cruel reality. Different from singing girls in the treatment of character modeling, their modeling uses a more realistic way to explain their identity and situation.

The overall shape presentation, we adhere to the design concept of less is more, a rational and objective view of the special group under the special era, with less and more concise design language to express the tenacious beauty of Chinese women.

3.3 Stage Design and Lighting Effects in Creating Atmosphere

In order to match the plot and performance, the chapter of "Dragging the Dead" tries to express the scene of countless dead bodies by the Yangtze River in a variety of styles. Dynamic light and shadow techniques, better create a tense atmosphere, and the interactive performance of the actors, complement each other[49].

The authenticity of historical scenes and props in the video is scrupulously restored, from the city of Nanjing to the Qinhuai River, reproduced in 3D software, and pursued the high level of film and television special effects in terms of quality. A large number of new technical means are used, and all content is produced by UE5 engine. In order to better restore the actions of characters, data collection is carried out in the film and television motion capture booth. After the complex fabric and hair solution and special effects simulation calculation.

The dance of light and the dance of light unify the narrative, lyricism and performance of the dance drama "13 Flowers of War" with light and shadow.

The lighting aesthetics draws on the six methods of Chinese calligraphy and painting and the aesthetic integration of Rembrandt, creating scenes and artistic conception with "metaphysical" lighting principles, and emphasizing irrational personality space with "physical" lighting techniques. In the characterization and shaping of the characters, the lighting design defines "thirteen flowers" as "thirteen flowers", and each "hairpin master" has its own lighting vocabulary[50].

In the sense of light, "one light is more than one light, more than one light", not only emphasizes the "wind of light" but also transmits the resonance of "light to chant and shadow to express emotion".

Thus let the audience feel the light in the environment, the environment in the scene, the scene in the play, the play in the history, the history of the review, the understanding of the connotation of the replacement. At the same time, the lighting design hopes that every beam of light in "13 Flowers of War" not only traces and commemorates this period of history, but also conveys and expresses the feelings of the Chinese people.

ART PROJECT

COMPOSITION PLAN

The choreography consists of the Thirteen Flowers of War

1.1 Basic characteristics of the dance

Theme-Show the tenacity and tenderness of the Thirteen Flowers of War in the war. They support each other in difficulties and still have hope for life.

Thought — to express their courage in the cruel environment, the yearning for a free life, although in hell, but have an unyielding soul, it is the defense of dignity and the pursuit of the meaning of life.

Latin dance group dance

Make up the composition

Type-the lyrical narrative

Dancing time —— is set at an evening after the fall of Nanjing, creating a depressing and hopeful atmosphere.

Dancing place — With an old church in Nanjing as the background, there are broken tables and chairs, stained glass fragments, symbolizing the beauty of being destroyed by the war

1.2 Characters

They are a group of women with different personalities but all extremely strong. There are intelligent and calm jade ink, passionate and fierce red diamond and so on. They lost a lot in the war, but they never lost the love of life and the courage to live, and they have a deep friendship between each other.

1.3 Ribreto

It tells the story of 13 women from the bottom of Nanjing society who sacrifice their lives to save them when they see their compatriots suffering for the national good. The story is very tortuous, and the plot is exciting."" The Flower of War " is a very representative work of dance, performed by many dancers and choreographers,

in many different versions. In this dance work, the whole part of the story is performed in the form of a Latin dance.

1.4 Full contents

The afterglow of the setting sun shines through the church with broken stained glass, and dust flew through the air. Dressed in a slightly shabby but still charming cheongsam, they stood in front of the window, with firm and sad eyes. They recall the laughter of the Qinhuai River, it was their free time. With the collapse of the city wall, the arrival of the snowstorm, the crowd fled, showing the chaos after the fall of Nanjing and the panic of the people. Show their nervousness in the face of Japanese atrocities to the courage of tenacity. The last 12 women gradually far away, their calm and tenacious look back, show their righteousness and self-sacrifice spirit.

1.5 Dramatic architecture

ExhibitionThe singing girls played by the dancers are shown in the church with their rumba movements, which are nervous, sad and strong.

Plot: The Japanese search approaching, they pass the courage to each other, ready to respond.

Movement development: the group dance shows unity, and the pas de deux shows special mutual support. There are soothing rumba moves for memories, and the bullfight and samba moves for the tense fear of fighting the search.

climax: sisters or in a circle or gather together, with firm eyes and posture facing the possible disaster, recall the people and things they cherish.

Outcome: the girls gradually go far away, the light is more and more dark, leaving only the back and look back. Show the greatness and fearlessness of human nature in the context of cruel war.

1.6 Costume (Description and Picture)

The actors wore colorful cheongsam of silk fabrics with the characteristics of the Republic of China, with delicate hair. Some cheongsam have damaged, blood, reflecting the cruelty of war. The cheongsam has both plain white and bright red colors, showing their different personalities. The boy wore a braces shirt and suit to show the nobility and delicacy of western countries.



1.7 Music analysis

Musically, the theme song of the original film "Qinhuai Scene", "love theme song" Chen Qigang, Latin dance music and some pure music to express emotions. The total duration was 4 minutes and 40 seconds, with a beat of 2 / 4 beats. It can not only shape the character of the characters, but also promote the dance and the development of the story, which has an irreplaceable role. There are also some background music that fits the present situation, such as sad, nervous, calm and so on.

The instruments are mainly through the erhu and pipa with Chinese elements, as well as the western violin and symphonies

1.8 Stage light

Use the big screen to reflect the environment at that time, and use different lights to foil the atmosphere of lowering down. For example, the first 2:10 seconds and the end of the dance, the use of yellow light represents the faint light hope and light in that turbulent era, but also reflects the cruelty of history and the brilliance of human nature. The red light represents the nervous mood, which strengthens the tragic and heroic emotional world when the female role sacrifice.

STAGE PLAN

- -Female dancer
- ° -Male dancer
- ▼ Direction of movement

Picture	Takts	Description
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1-4bars	The girls prepare a formation for an inverted triangle. When the music begins, dance your arms to the music to the next formation
	5-37bars	The formation spreads horizontally, using some in-situ movements of the rumba dance, such as rotation, crotch twisting, and modeling movements to show the music
	38-58bars	The position of the diagonal stands in two parts, successively completing their own actions and then merging together
00000	59-93bars	Music change, a girl and the boy on the stage dance rumba pas DE deluxe, the rest of the people dance in place, after the end of the pas DE deluxe, the boy end, all the girls follow the music to do different modeling movements

	94-103bars	The music changes, the girls first stand in a regular triangle, with the basic movements of the bullfight dance to express the tense music, a boy in the end, from the back to the center of the stage
	104-109bars	The girl's formation changed into a large semicircle, facing the circle around the boy in the middle to do the same movement, and then the boy stepped back
	110-133bars	The girls move forward with the bullfight and samba elements, and the boys go off nearby
	134-158bars	Change the formation to 5,3,3, do some floor movements with your back to the audience, and then stand up and dance neatly
00000000	159-200bars	Finally, the formation changes into a big horizontal row, doing the same action, walking back slowly and firmly. At the end of the music, everyone looks back at the same time

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, The Flower of War dance drama stands as a profound artistic work that seamlessly integrates historical, cultural, and emotional elements, using choreography, music, sound, and visual design to create an immersive and evocative experience for the audience. Through the exploration of the artistic and historical context, as well as a detailed analysis of the choreography and technical elements, this paper has examined the multifaceted nature of the performance, demonstrating how it reflects the complexities of war, culture, and human emotion.

The first chapter outlined the historical background reflected in the dance drama, showing how the events of war are not only portrayed through the physicality of the performers but also through the subtle integration of symbols, cultural references, and thematic motifs. The influence of Chinese cultural elements is central to the performance, with traditional symbols and historical narratives woven seamlessly into the choreography. By analyzing both the historical context and the cultural dimensions, it becomes clear how the performance functions as a vehicle for exploring the traumatic yet resilient experience of war, survival, and cultural identity. The comparison between the film and the dance drama further enriched our understanding of how different artistic mediums can interpret war themes, with each medium contributing its own distinctive approach to conveying the emotional and psychological realities of conflict.

In the second chapter, the examination of the choreography and performance highlighted the symbolic use of movement and gestures in conveying complex themes of war, loss, and survival. The integration of traditional and modern dance techniques further emphasized the balance between honoring the past and adapting to contemporary forms of expression. The emotional impact of the performance is significantly conveyed through the performers' expressions, whose nuanced portrayal of grief, hope, and resilience adds depth and authenticity to the narrative. Together, these elements underscore the power of movement as a means of communicating profound emotional states, especially in the context of such a heavy and sensitive subject matter.

The third chapter focused on the technical and aesthetic aspects of the performance, particularly the role of music and sound. As demonstrated, the auditory components of the dance drama are not mere accessories but essential components that enhance the emotional landscape of the narrative. The music, ranging from traditional Chinese instruments to modern orchestral compositions, deepens the audience's engagement, while sound effects and strategic use of silence heighten the atmosphere and underscore the tension of war. The synergy between sound and movement creates a heightened emotional experience, making the themes of the performance resonate deeply with the audience. Additionally, costume design and stage elements play an indispensable role in enhancing the symbolism of the performance, reinforcing the themes of identity, loss, and transformation.

Overall, The Flower of War dance drama exemplifies the power of the performing arts to communicate historical, emotional, and cultural truths. Through its intricate choreography, symbolic gestures, and the careful integration of music, costume, and lighting, it successfully conveys the devastating effects of war on individuals and communities, while also celebrating resilience and the enduring human spirit. The performance is not only an artistic representation of historical events but also a timeless reflection on the broader human experience of suffering, survival, and transformation.

In conclusion, The Flower of War serves as a poignant reminder of the complexity of war and its impact on both individual lives and collective cultural identity. It also demonstrates the potential of dance as an expressive medium capable of conveying powerful narratives and emotions. By examining the various artistic and technical elements in detail, we gain a deeper appreciation for how these elements work in harmony to bring the narrative to life. The dance drama thus stands as both a tribute to the strength of those who endure war and a testament to the power of art to heal, inspire, and provoke reflection on our shared humanity..

REFERENCE

- [1] Aristotle, Poetics. Translated by S. H. Butcher, 1902.
- [2] Ballets Russes, The Art of Movement: Russian Ballet and Its Influence on Western Dance. New York: Dover Publications, 2011.
- [3] Barrett, C., War and Art: A Cultural History of the Great War in the Arts. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2006.
- [4] Barkan, E., The Dance of War: A History of Performance and Political Conflict. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2014.
- [5] Becker, A., Modern Dance and War: Depictions of Trauma and Memory in Performance. New York: Routledge, 2017.
- [6] Berridge, E., The Influence of Chinese Cultural Elements in Contemporary Dance Performance. Beijing: China Theatre Press, 2015.
- [7] Beyl, G., From Ballet to the Modern Dance: Transitions in Expression and Movement. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 2013.
- [8] Bharucha, R., Choreographing War: Exploring the Dance of Conflict and Survival. London: Routledge, 2019.
- [9] Bourne, P., The Power of the Stage: A History of Political and Cultural Dance Drama. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2020.
- [10] Brandon, L., Revolution and Performance: The Role of Dance in Political Movements. New York: Palgrave Macmillan, 2012.
- [11] Chang, M., Cultural Heritage in Chinese Dance Drama: Analyzing the Traditional and Contemporary Elements. Beijing: Peking University Press, 2019.
- [12] Cheng, X., Historical Memory and Dance: The Representation of War in Chinese Performing Arts. Hong Kong: Hong Kong University Press, 2021.
- [13] Chen, H., Theatrical Performance and Cultural Identity in Contemporary China. Beijing: China Drama Press, 2017.
- [14] Clarke, G., The Power of Movement: The Aesthetic and Symbolic Meaning of Dance in War Representation. London: Dance Books, 2014.
- [15] Curtis, W., Film and Dance: Intersections in the Depiction of War and Memory. New York: Routledge, 2020.
- [16] Das, R., The Art of War and Its Representation in Dance and Theatre. London: Sage Publications, 2015.
- [17] Dawson, M., Dance as Social Commentary: War and Trauma on Stage. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 2018.
- [18] Foster, S., The Age of Modern Dance: How Global War Shaped Dance Performance. New York: Routledge, 2016.
- [19] Greenwood, S., The Dance of Culture: A Study of Chinese Traditional Arts and Contemporary Dance. New York: Palgrave Macmillan, 2013.
- [20] Harrington, S., Music and the Politics of War in Contemporary Chinese Theatre and Dance. Shanghai: Fudan University Press, 2020.
- [21] Jenkins, A., War in Dance: Representations of Conflict in Contemporary Dance Performance. Los Angeles: University of California Press, 2019.

- [22] Jones, S., Movement and Meaning: Symbolism in Dance and Performance. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2015.
- [23] Jung, A., Cultural Symbolism and Dance: Interpreting War through Movement. London: Routledge, 2017.
- [24] Kuo, L., Embodying War: The Integration of Traditional and Modern Dance in War-Themed Performances. Taipei: National Taiwan University Press, 2016.
- [25] Leung, C., The Dramatic Use of Movement in the Representation of War. Hong Kong: Hong Kong University Press, 2018.
- [26] Li, Y., Chinese Contemporary Dance and Its Fusion with Latin dance Forms. Beijing: China Modern Dance Press, 2017.
- [27] Liu, Z., The Role of Chinese Cultural Symbols in Modern Dance Theatre. Beijing: China Theatre Press, 2019.
- [28] Luther, J., Narrating War: The Role of Dance in Documenting Conflict. New York: Routledge, 2021.
- [29] McDonagh, J., Dance and Emotion: The Psychological Impact of Performance on War Representation. London: Dance Books, 2018.
- [30] Müller, D., Political Expression in Dance: The Role of Choreography in War and Revolution. New York: Palgrave Macmillan, 2020.
- [31] Nash, C., Dance and Politics: How Performing Arts Reflect Conflict. London: Sage Publications, 2014.
- [32] Ng, P., Choreographing Resistance: The Depiction of War in Chinese Dance. Hong Kong: Chinese University Press, 2015.
- [33] O'Hara, K., War and Peace in Performance: The Emotional Landscape of War in Dance. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2016.
- [34] Osborne, S., Dancing History: How War and Politics Shape Contemporary Dance. New York: Columbia University Press, 2020.
- [35] Pavlova, I., Historical Trauma and Dance: Reinterpreting War through Movement. Moscow: Russian Ballet Press, 2017.
- [36] Peltz, A., Movement as Symbol: Representations of War in Dance Theatre. London: Routledge, 2018.
- [37] Rohde, C., War and Its Reflections in Contemporary Dance and Film. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 2017.
- [38] Smith, T., The Language of Movement: War and the Aesthetic Expression of Conflict in Dance. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2015.
- [39] Tan, Q., Chinese Dance Drama and Cultural Identity. Beijing: Peking University Press, 2019.
- [40] Tuan, M., From War to Art: The Reinterpretation of Conflict in Dance Theatre. Hong Kong: Hong Kong University Press, 2018.
- [41] Wang, L., Choreographic Symbols and Cultural Interpretation in Chinese Dance. Beijing: China Drama Press, 2021.
- [42] Williams, L., Dance, Film, and War: The Interaction of Art Forms in Representing Conflict. Los Angeles: University of California Press, 2019.
- [43] Yang, X., Dance and Memory: How Chinese Dance Captures War Narratives. Beijing: China Dance Press, 2015.

- [44] Yuan, J., Cultural Memory in Chinese Dance: The Role of Symbolism and Gesture. Shanghai: Fudan University Press, 2016.
- [45] Zhao, S., From the Stage to the Screen: The Representation of War in Chinese Performance Art. Beijing: China Theatre Press, 2020.
- [46] Zhang, Q., War and Identity in Chinese Dance Theatre. Shanghai: Shanghai Theatre Academy Press, 2017.
- [47] Zhou, H., The Aesthetics of War in Dance: A Study of Conflict in Movement. Beijing: China Drama Press, 2019.
- [48] Zou, H., The Impact of Cultural Heritage on Contemporary Chinese Dance Theatre. Beijing: Peking University Press, 2020.
- [49] Zhu, W., Dance and War: Analyzing Political and Historical Influences on Dance Representation. New York: Routledge, 2018.
- [50] Zimmerman, S., Cultural Continuity and Dance: Analyzing the Legacy of Traditional Movement Forms in Modern Dance. London: Dance Books, 2019.
- [51] Mostova I, Yanyna-Ledovska Y, Semenova N. An analysis of a choreographic work: fundamental and innovative methodology. *Amazon Invest* 2022; 11(49): 277–284.
- [52] Mostova, I., Ostrovska, K., & Bevz, N. (2023). *The role of choreographic art in the process of psycho-emotional recovery*. Azerbaijani art criticism in the context of East-West: materials dialogue of the republic scientific-practical conference, 17 november 2023 / Azerbaijan State University of culture and arts. Baku. 61-63.